that is, all lands upon which mineral
This called for & large amount
The progrem is roughly
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SURVEYING AND MAPPING DIVISION
* _ REPORT
The primery objeotives of this Division were to survey
and map the lends required for the developmsnt of Flean-
oor 763, the Lone Star Steel Compeny's blast furnace
project; however, shortly after work was under way, 1t
wag declded to survey end map all lends required ln the
mining operations,
leases were to be acquired.
of work and a large organization.
outlined as follows:
I. Control Surveys
2. Control Traﬂaraaﬂ'
b. HElevations
A II. Topographic Suzveys
iy : -"'\_'__
i III. Ore Test Pits
a, Staking locations
b. Collar elevations
IV. Land Surveys
&. Abstraotirg
b. Surveys
1. Computations
2, Fleld Notes
3. Gonveyances
0. Mapping
V. Misocelleneous
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The control surveys were commenced in May, 1942, A
series of traverses were run throughout the area with
elevations esteblished along the lines. Upon these
lines the topographic surveys were based and they were
also used for azimuth control to start the land surveys.
Only two of the lines were used as land survey lines.

This work began at the Arkansas-Loulsiana Gas Company
Compressor Station adjacent to the ol? State Highwey
No. 26 in the linsign B. Smith Survey.

The first line, Line "A", was run in a southeasterly
direction following the Arkansas-Louisiana Gas Com-
pan; pipe line, first, to a conneotion with H. M. Con-
norta first survey of the prelimimary plant site, and,
later, it was extended along the pipe line southeas-
terly throughout the area coversd by our surveys.

The second line, Line "B", coriginated near the same

point as "A" and was run southwerd along Highway No. 26
to conneot with the preliminary location for the dam site,
then run North to connect with U. S. G, S. B.M. #A-3 at
the Courthouss in Deingerfield. This is the line upon
whioh all our Americen Polyoconic Grid Control is based

as well &s ell elevations.

Subsequent control lines all criginated on or closed on
1-1118 AT i .

A total of 58.86 miles of control traverses, together
with elevations, were rum.

In addition to the elevatlons run elong the control trae-
verses, approximately 40 miles of elevations were estab-
lished for topogrephic use, making a total of approxi-
mately 100 miles of control elevations.
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At the beginning of survey work, arrangements were made with
the General Land Office of Texas for the use of a topogra-
phic party under R. C. Wladom as Chief of Party.

Upon arrival at the Job in May, 1942, this party first
brought in elevetions from the U, S. G. S. bench-mark sys-
tem along the L & A railroad and began topography on the
original preliminary plant site location in June, 1942,
After work was under way, it was declded to expand the area
to be mapped and the second party was organized in July with
C. W. Tddwell, also from the Land Office, as chief. Still
later the third party,under Scott Carney,was placed in the
field in August, 1942.

Planetable topography on one foot intervals eand 1" equals
100" scale was first mede on the plant sites followed by
Ellison Creek Reservoir Area on the scals of 1" : 500!
with 5' intervels. Later the reservoir shesets were file
led in on one foot intervals to the elavation of 245 feet.
This amounted to a total of aprroximately 1200 aores of -
topogrephy on ons foot contour intervals and 46800 acres
{inoluding the one foot area) on 5' inmtervals,

For a pericd of several weeks in July, August and Septem-
ber, the topographic parties were used in connection with
the preliminary rellread location survuys and in running
out drainage areas on the final raeilroad looation.

In September, 1942, the topographic surveys were atarted
on the ore lands. This topography was teken at 5' inter-
vals on the scale of 1" equala 500' and the wark was hng,
first, on the control survey traverses, and, later, om the
preliminary land survey traverses. It was completed for
the greeter part in Fabmgg, 1943, and covered a total
area of approximately 19, acres.

All topograpny was by plane table upon & standard mounted
sheet. The sheets were coordinated and traced directly

onto standerd mep sheets on the scale of 1" : 500', These
were later combined into & composite msp by a photo-reductlion
process to the scale of 1" equels 1000', In the interim,
however , the original tracings were stored in the Adminis-
tration Bullding vault end suffered so much from mildew

that 1t was impossible for the blue printer to secure &

first class matohing Job.
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The topographic surveys summarize aes follows:

1' intervala scals of 1" » 100' ¢ 300 acres

1 " iy Pl 500 o Q0%
Total 1' intervals - 1200 aocres

5' intervals, 1" & 500' soale:

Plant Sites and Reservolirs 4800 ecres
Ore lands 18000 "
Teotal, 5 ft. intervals - 83600 acres

GRAND TOTAL . 24 ,600 sores




III - ORE TEST PITS

Staking of ore test pite was ell done by a survey party
under H. M. Connor as Chief of Party.

The work begsn in June, 1942, and was held rather steady
until September, 1942, when this party was placed on
land surveys for several months. Later it returned to
test pit staking.

Ooriglnally the pits were staked on & arid system at
500 foot intervals but leter, after Lesting, soms
areas were restaked on 250 foot intervals.

Elevations were established on all the pit locations
and also on the well collars.

This work required approximately 75 miles of transit
and level lines in staking test pits on approximately
3400 aores of land.
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Unlike the Federal land states, Texas, with its old sys-
tem (or rather the lack of any Byatamf of headright surveys,
land grents and pre-emption lands, presents survey problems
pecullar to Texas and much more complicated than a person
unfamiliar with them would expect. =specially is this true
in en area 11lke this in which all the original headright
grants were surveyed from 1838 to 1855 without permanent
markers of even reasonably accurate surveys -~ a timbered
areé with very little farming, low valued lands, etc. The
land owners down through the years paid very little atten=
tion to thelr land lines and the preservation of corner
witness trees. This condltion usually results in require
ing an entire area to be resurveyed instead of permitting
a survey of any individual tract. This was the case in
this instance and it became necessary to resurvey not only
our lands but those headright surveys adjacent thereto or
which may in eny was affect the proper location of the re-
quired lands.

As in the topographic surveys, the area to be resurveyed
called far a large amount of work involving (a) abstraot-
ing, (b) surveying end (c) mapping.

a. Abstrautgm

Preliminary to and in preparation for the surveying field
work, abstracting of the Surveyor'!s Deed and Patent Re-
cords of Morrie County, was commenced early in July, 1942.

At the start of this work, we took off complete abatraots
working with the understanding that these abstracts werse
to be used by the Real Estate Division of the D. P. C.
for title purposes. Such abstracts were prepered on all
lande required for the plant site and reservoir before we
learned that the D, P. C. had ocontracted this work to El-
liott and Waldron, Abstraoctors. Following this we reduced
this work to securing only the record desoriptions and
field notes required for uze in our surveying. From these
instruments, working, or abstract, sketches were prepared
on 80 headright surveys by the time the work was suspended
in March, 1943. These field notes and descriptions were
dupliceted by Ditto process and multiple coples made.

LY
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b. Surveying

As mentioned under "Control Surveys" all the land survey-
ing is ocoordinated on the American Polyconle Grid System
besed on the U. S, G. S. B.M. #A-3 at the Courthouss in
Daingerfield, Texas.

Horizontal ohaining was dons us band levels end plumb
bobs. The cheinmen were trained (and checked periodi-
mﬂri in the proper pull on the tapes by use of tapse
BQeles.

All angles were read three times end thelr mean readings
used for azimuth control. Frequent ties were mede to the
control traverses with oocasional Polaris readings as a
further check.

The required closures were: chaining 1 : 5000 and, azi-
math 10" per transit point. The average ratios actually
:ecured were muoh better than the requirements in both
agctors.

All headright surveys and property corners were monumented
with 8" x 8" oonorete markers with a copper disk set in
top. Iron rods were set on each line iceding away from
the corner monuments as reference points and also used as
angle points in meander lines.

Witness trees were marked in many instances as called for
in ocur "corrected” field notes.

The "Surveyors Report” to the Commissioner of the Land Of-
fice of Texas is attached hereto to whioh reference is
mede for more specific detells of certain surveys.

Prior to the stert of work by the John V. W. Reynders or-
genization, a partial survey of the preliminary plant site
"A" was made by H, M, Connor, a local surveyor. This sur-
vey was tlied to by the control surveys and used by the
topographic surveys for their initial work. Later it was
rotraced and correlated with ths land surveys.

In September, 1942, the land survey orgenization began to °
function. :

pzerilln RGPS




Party S-1, under Vaughn H, Phillips with Ned Ford as
Instrumentmen, bad been orgenized laie in August and
wes working on the Ensiga B. Smith.

Party S-2, under R. B. Steger with Albert lee &s In=-
strumentmén , was also orgenlized during August tut for
tha first month their work was on location of the
power line and on the reilroad. It started on land
surveys proper ebout September 15th on the 0, C. Founs
and R. P. Holoomb Surveys.

A party under H. M. Connor, whioh had besn working on
staking ore test plts, was re-orgenized as Party S-3
with Connor remaining as Chief and A. B. Holoomb as
Instrumentman. They began their land surveys on the
Wm. C. Everatt Survey.

This orgenizetion had just been made when instruoctions
were recelved to do the impossible. We were ordered
to resurvey and return corrected desoriptions on all
lands involved in the East Texas Brown Ore Company min-
eral deal by Ootober 31, 1942, and also those ln the
Marion-Cass Development Company block by November 30th.

Two new land parties were assembled = Topog Party No.3,
under Carney, was re~orgenized into a land survey marty
and the oontrol survey party, C-l, was placed on land
surveys.

Some progress had besen made by October 31, 1942, when
it developed that the surveys were not required by the
dates ordered so this arrangement we:s abandoned. The
extra perties wers laid off and Topog Party No. 3 and
Party C-1 both returned to their former dutiss. The
lanhgdﬁrtiaa resuned their work as per the original
80 =

Party S-1 surveyed nineteen (19) headrights together
with their required subdivisions. This party was ter-
mineted in April, 1943. Phillips, however, was re=-
tained in the office until July 15th.

Party S-2 remained on the job longer than any of the
othsrs. It surveyed thirty~-six (36) headrights end set
all monuments (637) throughout the area. It also ran
the power line loocation, tied-in Highway #26 to survey
lines for right-of-way purposes and surveyed both the
railroad and power line rights-of-way tracts. Steger
remained with the party until September, 1943, when he
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wes made acting land agent for the Lone Star Steel Come
pang; After Steger was transferred, A. E. Holoomb acted
as Party Chief until the party was terminated in Feb-
TuaIry, 1944,

Party S-3 alternated thelr work between land surveys

and staking ore test pits. The last two weeks prior

to temination in asugust, 1943, it re-marked certain
test plt areas and meander points with iron pins. It
surveyed eight (8) msadright surveys, ren about 75 miles
of lines, steking 711 ore test pits and set iron rods

at epproximately 500 shore line meander points.

Summary of Survey Field Werk

63 Headright Surveys 26,847.89 Aores
S Vacanoles 108,72 "
"Originel" Subdivisions 10,194.56 "

Lone Star Steel Compeny Subdivi-
sions (In addition to the

"original” subdivisions) 2,748.06 "
Total Aores Surveyed 30,899.23 Aores

In making these surveys the epproximate mileage of pre-
limipnary traverses is roughly as follows:

Headrights 125 Miles
Subdivisions -
Shore Lines A

Total 310 Miles of line.

To mark the surveys we set:

Conorete monuments 637
Reference points (iron rods) 1800
Ore test pits (not drilled,
re-marked with iron rods
for future use), approxi-

mately 220
lieander points, approximately 500
Total 2957
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The correlating of our surveys to the American Foly-
conic Grid Coordinete System entalled a huge amount
of computation, requiring the services of two com=-
puters for nearly a year.

- d Notes

All field notes and "corrected" field notes were writ-
ten by the Prinoipel Surveyor. An original typed ocopy
and three (3) carbons wers prepared for record pur-
poses and then 30 coples of each tract to be acquired
were made by the Ditto process. On those headright
surveys field noted, but in which we were not acquir-
ing iiianda in fee, fifteen (15) coples of each was pre-
pared.

"Corrected” field notes were returned on 63 headright
surveys and approximeately 140 original subdivision
traots. The tracts to be acquired originally totaled
183 tracts but subsequent ochanges on many of them in-
creased this number to aprmroximately 225 sets of fleld
notes, thus making a total of field notes computed,
typed and dittoed of about 430, Dus to the changes
mentioned, many of these notes lost their value end

in the final essembly we bound for recording in Mor-
ris and/or Cass Countles a total of 337 field notes
together with 112 plats covering a total of 36,677.53
acres of land. This aoreage broker-down is as follows:

Headright Surveys 26,847.80 Acres
Vacant Public School Land 108,72 "
Subdivision Traots 9,800,57 "
Pipe Line Sasements pmg o™
Railrocad Rights-of-way e2.74 "
Power Line Rights-of-way 57.61 "
Total 36,677.53 Acres
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In addltion to the above as a result of changes in-
structed since binding, we have prepared for recording
separately four additionel notes:

J. C. Wilson Estate B85 .84 Acres
Connor Brothers s 1B - B
Lone Star Steel Co. g3 "
Ly ] n L. | i ] H 05 "w
TOTAL 161.76 "

This makes a grand total of 56,839.29 aores upon which
field notes are being recorded.

3. Conveyanges

From the initial negotiations for tho required lands
until some of the very recent changes, this Division
prepared all conveyances such as deeds, walvers of wa-
ter demages, easements, eto., a3 to thelr descoriptions.
We filled in the desorlptions and transmitted the in-
strument to the D, P. C. Agents office in Dallas for
the considerations to be supplied there. This involved
originally 163 tracts but,liks the field notes, a large
number of changes were instructed and,therefore, approx-
imately 220 to 240 separate instruments were prepared.

In addition to these upon those tracts upon whioh oon-
demnation wes required, we prepared individual sketches
of sach tract together with the field notes for seme and
a locative map. Thsse were supplied as follows:

D. P, C. Looal Agent 1 Copy
Washington Offioce 12 Copies
Lene Star Steel Co. -2 Copies
A total of . . . 135 Copies of each set.

From first to last, we have supplied the followling number
of tracts:

lst - Proceedlings 7 Tracts
2nd . 19 -
Srd i 43 E
4th Requesat 14 »
S5th . i 3 3
TOTAL &6 )
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Without base maps or control maps of any particular
value to start this projeot, we were faced with having
to prepare some map to serve & number of purposes un=
til we could bulld specific ones.

The first was mede as an Index and General Location Map
by combining @ U, S, G. S. map which accompanied their
publication on the Queen City Sand Deposits with a

U. 5. C, & G. S, mep showing the Daingerfield quadrangle.
This latter map showed topogrephy while the first men-
tioned showed the mineral deposits. Both were on the
scale of 1 equals 82,500 or 1" equals 5208 feet. The
southern limits of the U. S. C. & G, S. map was the 33°
of latitude and we Joined them along this line. Photo-
lithoid reproductions were made upon which we superim-
posed varlous data. One was prepared as a General Index
Map, one to show proposed raeilroad locations, another
highway locations and e combination of those two. As
more data was secured, new issues were forthooming un-
til we had this same small scale base map showing plant
slte, beneficiation site, rallroad, highwey and index
to our topographic end lend survey sheets with their co-
ordinate boundaries. This wes then used as a progress
map to accompany our weekly reports until it could be
replaced with another.

The sscond, and most infamous, of our early maps was

a land map on the scale of 1" equals 1000' prepared
from the deed records for the lands in and around the
plent site and reservolr area. This became known as
the "John V. W, Reynders Abstract Map™ and figures inte
the land trensaotions to a very great extent.

As work progressed we seocured a reproduction of an oil
company owneraship map of this area and upon & negative
of 1% we superimposed our data and used it for reporte
ing progress and also as a general guide for the fisld
parties in laying out thelr work. This mep waa on the
scale of 1" equals 1.8 miles,

We are indebted to the Magnolia Petroleum Compeny for
& serles of negatives of their ownersiilp maps through-
out this area which bave been used many times over to
show the vsrious mineral lands acquired. In fact,
these are the only maps we have to show all the hold-
ings of this project.
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From time to time we have made specicl maps for various
puarposes from these Magnolia maps. “or the sake of
::ﬂﬂr, these special maps will not be enumerated

ITre ®

As & general statement aoccounting for a very large nume-
ber of man hours, the verious speclal maps prepered,
colored and malled at all hours on special urgent or-
ders were a souroce of trouble for a long period of
tilme. It is estimated to have required the full sere
vices (which included overtime) of at least one man
for a period of about six months,

The mapping of the land surveys consisted of:

l. Working Sketohes 1" equals 500' Scale
2. Survey Sketches 1" W IR,
3. Area Survey Maps 1l " B500* .
4. Survey Maps s by olnany - v
5. Topographioc Maps 3 b - 5007 .
6. Special Maps Variable Scales

A briefl explanation of the various groups of mps is
as follows:

l. Vorking Sketohes were of two types. The first type
{a) was prepared from abstraot data for guidance in run-
ning the prelimipary field surveys. The second (b) type
was [wepared from our field work as a gulde in select~
ing evidenoce for the proper location of the survey lines.
Thess were platted from the notes as turned ln delly by
the survey parties and usually cover:d several headrights.
All marked trees, corners, witness trees, fences, lines
of ocooupancy, etoc. found in the field were shown on these
plats to serve the computers and Prinoipel Surveyor in
Setting up the final lines. For the greater part, these
sketches were mede on paper on the scale of 1" equals
500", These sketches carry no identification numbers.

2. Survey S 8 ere also of two types, both of which
were prepered from our final survey data and refleot our
fiﬂld notesa.

Type 1 are the maps of the individual headright surveys
made for recording with our "Correocted Field Notes™ in
ths General Land Office of Texas. This is a legal re-
quirement. These survey sketches were on linen and made
to the scale of 1" equals 500' unless ot herwise noted.
They carry the Eurvez'nr'u Certifiocate and are numbered
"IS=-1l", "LS-1-A" or =l-B", ete. to "15-63", The
Land Office requires all sketohes to be submitted in
the form of treocing, so for that reason we bhad the orig-
inals duplicated for recording. FPrints from these are
likewlise belng recorded in the County Surveyor's Offlce
of Morris and/or Cass Counties.
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Type 2 are survey sketohes of various tracts of lend;
these were made for condemnation proceedings, as a rule,
or for use of the Real istate Division in aoquiring ocer-
tain lands. They too, 28 &8 general rule, were on the
scale of 1" equals 500" sinoe they were usually traced -
on paper from the "LS™ maps. In each instanoce, they
carry the land owners neme for the purpose of identifi-
cation. No numbers were assigned these maps. Approxi-
mately 110 of these maps were made. On the 80 tracts
submitted for condemnation, we supplled 16 print= of eaoch,
most of which had the tract boundaries outlined in red.

3. Area Survey Mep. - This map is on the scale of 1"
equals 5007 ana 8 ocmposed of eight (8) standard (24" x
36") sheets coordinated to match the 500' topographic
meps oovering the same area.

These sheets carry the identification serial numbera in
the following order:

785=-434 763-437
763-433 763-4358
783-432 765-439
763-431 763-440

These numbers are 30 higher then the topographlo map
sheets covering the same areas, that 1s to say, 763-431
govers the same area as topogrephic map 763-401; 7635-437
the same as 763-407,

They show headright surveys, subdivisions, railroed,
power line, pipe lines, plant sites, housing projects,
dams , Treservoirs and highwaya. In addition to these
items, they show each tract of land acquired in conneo-
tion with the development of this project, giving their
tract numbers, appralsal numbers, names of owners from
whom the land was acquired and the aoreage content of
saoch tract,

4, Survey Map. - This map is on the soale of 1" equals
10007 and oconsists of five (5) standard (24" x 36")
gheaets numbered 763-44l, -442, -443, -444 and -445. The
map shows all headrignts surveyed, all subdivisions and
all items of the projeot such as dams, reservoirs, plant
sites, railroad, power line, pipe lines, housing projeot,
roads and highway. Ven Dyke negatives were made of
these sheets, matched together and two (2) composite
duplicate tracings made. These are explained under
"Special Maps".
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5‘.;%:5%1%31!& . = This map is on the scale of 1"
equals th 5 foot contouwr intervals. It is com-
posed of 16 standard (24" x 36") sheets carrying the

fdentification serial numbers in the following order:

765-404 763=407 763=-414
763=403 763-408 765-413
763~402 763409 763-412
763~401 763-410 763-411

765-420 765-419

The skips in the numbering are dus to abandoning certain
arees originally planned to be surveyed.

These maps were made by tracing direct from the original
coordinated plane table sheetls.
tion was made of these sheets in January, 1943, drior to
completion of the work and another one in its completed
form was made as of May 31, 1944, These maps carry the
numbers 763-425 and 763-425 Revised. Thsy ere further
expla ined under "Special Maps”.

8. Sgan;g Maps are:

a. Topographic Map No. 763-425.
photo reduotion mede Dy macching ven Dyke negatives of
our 1" equals 500' topographic map sheets and combining
into one tracing on the scale of 1" equals 1000', This
was done before either the topographic or land surveys
were complete. Approximately thirty-six (36) coples of
this map were colored for distribution.

b. Tu&ggra%u Map No. 763-425 Revised. This map
was prapare the same menner &s the rirst 763-425 after

all surveys were completed.

A composite photo reduo-

This was a composite

1t shows all items of the Project such as railroad, power

line, pipe lines, plant sites, dams, reservoirs, silt
basin, housing project, roads, etc. as well as all topog-
raphy taken and land surveys made. This revision date
i3 as of May 31, 19%44.
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0. I.B-&_&at S;E'fEE Skat% - 763-446. This map was
prepared ior ng w the Genera d 0ffice of Texas
in ocnnection with the "Correocted Field Notes". It 1s a
composite duplicate tracing mde by oombining the five
(5) stendard sheets of the 1" equals 1000 Survey Map.
The duplioate tracing was made on the original scale of
1" equals 1.000' and shows all the headrignt surveys, re-
traced by this orgenization and upon which "Corrected
Field notea"™ wers returned.

, d. Area Map - 783-450, This map was made from the
1" squals LUOGY £E1er ﬁp by combining the five (5) sheets
into one duplicate traocing (the same as was dop® 1ln LS-446,
Survey Sketch) on the original scale of 1" equals 1000°,
Upon it we show, in heavy lines, the outer perimeter of
all 1ends acquired in fes fcr the development of this pro-
ject as well as the location of all project items such as
power 1:L:t:uaas_r railroad, pipe lines, dams, reservoirs, silt
basin end piBnt sites.

8 Prﬁg;asa Map = 763-451., This map was made by
superimposing upon & 0za positive of & section of the
Magnolia Pstroleum Company mep (scale 2" equals one mile)
ths limits of the aree surveyed, the perimeter of the lands
to be aequired, the reilroad, powser line, dams, reservolrs,
and plant sites. A legend eaccompanies the ma&p to ahow the
status of the land soquisitions.

f. Progress Map - 783-453. Thls was a map made by
combining oze&ﬁ puaEtIv;ea of part of the Survey Map on
the scale of 1" squals lU00' and superimposing upon it
the boundaries, tracot numbers, appraisal numbers, namss
of owners and acreage of each traet of land being aoquired
for the plent site, Eilison Cresk Reservoir and Ore Devel-
cpment areas. Mede in Ootober, 1943, it was desigped mri-
merily as a gulde and progress map to be used in comnection
with the acquisition of the lands.

8o I.oa&%nn Map - 783-452. This wes a map made to
aceompeny the ng condemnation proceedings upon the
railroad and power line ﬁ.ghta—ar-wa{ trects end the lands
required for the ore development facllitles. It was pre-
pered by combining ozalid positives of part of the Survey
Map on the scale of 1" equals 1000' and superimposing thereon
the required data. It shows the location and limits of each
tract together with its number, néme of ownsr, abstract
reference and acreage required.

h., Weskly P ess Map - 763~ e« This map is on
the scale © equals and was used to show weekly
progress on control, land and topographic surveys and ore
test pit staking. It is on tracing peper; the last date
ghown 1s January 15, 1943.




17

i. Topographig Ma . nlex anl Progress Sheet
'?gg-i._gﬁ. 8 map was mede by combining U.o.G.5. map
owing minerel deposits with the Daingerfield quad-
rangle of the U.85.C. & G.S5. map. Shows limits end sheet
numbers of the Topographic¢ Survey Maps, Flant Slte, Res-
ervolr, Railroad, Power Line, Telephone Line and proposed
road routes. It also shows the cocrdinate grid aystem

as used on the surveys. The sceleis 1 : 62,500 or 1"
equals 5208°.

Js Index M&g - ?ﬁﬁ-&ig. This mep is on the scale
g 1% 1 E a s platted by coordinates from our
finel surveys. It shows the location of all plamt site
items, the limits of the topogrephioc surveys, an index
to the topographic map sheets, the headright surveys
with our "L3" index numbers together with acreage of
sach, end other pertinent data. A duplicate tracing
of this map wes made for filing in the Land Office along
with the "Corrected Fileld Notes".

Y. MISCELLANEOUS

In addition to the work &s outlined sbove this Division
did a eonsiderable amount of miscellaneous work such as
(1) acting as a go-between for the land owners and pro-
jeot mapagement , and (2) ths coding and filing of requi-
sitions and purchase orders feor materials for apmoxi-

metely ona yeer.
/
-;r i _:;,.é%r

We 7. Powell
Reaident Epgineer
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SURVEYORS REPORT ON
RETRACEMENTS OF CERTAIN SURVEYS
IN MORRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

Preparatory to the resurveylng of tho Plant Site, reser-
voir and ore lands for the Lone Star Steel Compeny, we
started a survey elong the old Texas State Higlway No. 26
neayr the Arkansas-Louisliena Gas Company Compressor Station
in Block 12 of the Ensign B. Smith Survey, Morris County,
Texas. Observation of Polaris wes made near this poiant
June 1, 1942 for azimuth control and a treverse run to a
conneotion with U.S.G.S. B.M, No. A-3 at the Courthouss
%’nunaingerﬂeld ,» Texas. The geodetic position of this

& a a:

Latitude 33° 01' 53".3
longitude 94° 43' 19".4, and; the Amerioan Polyconic
Grid coordinates are:

N: 1,006,148.07 yds. equals 3,288,444.21 feet
E: 1,832,713.58 yds. equals 3,698,140.74 feet

Grid Azimuth is 1° 14' 05" less than Geodetio (Trus)
Azmthn ;

A serles of Control Traverses were next run throughout the
arsa to be surveyed. Each loop was run to & olosure meeting
& requirement of 1:10,000 and all positions were adjusted
to thelir proper plane coordinate valuss based on U.S.3.5.
Ban I‘ID- ﬁ—ﬁq

Later, on August 20, 1942, enother observetion was made on
Pplaris from a point near the southesst corner of the D, B.
Sorrells Survey and confirmed the observation first made
in the Ensign B. Smith Survey as previously mentioned.

The magnetioc deoclination wes determined as being 8° 38' East.

During the running of the Comtrol Traverses, & force of
abetractors searched the Surveyors, Patent and Deed Records
of Merrie and Cass Countles and furnished us with all record
instruments on each headright survey together with all sub=
divisions of same epd from this informetion working sketches
were prepared for use in the field.

Thres land survey pearties were orgenized under experienced
party chiefs. The men trained in precision chaining and
with each party we placed loocal men famillar with the var-
lous property lineg end also experienced in identifying sure
veyors markings on trees. Eaoh party wes assigned an area
to work in and, basing thelr work on the Control Traverses,
each besgan his work at some definite known survey oorner.
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Party No. 1 under Vaughn H, Phillips begen at the original
northweat corner of the 0. C. Pouns Survey, Abst., 399, on
the south line of the Tnslgn B. Smith Survey and first
retraced the Ensign B. Smith Survey, Abat. 253, together
with all the sub-divisiocns of same.

Party No. 2 under R, B. Steger began at the original most
westerly southwest corner of 0. C. Pouna Survey, Abat. 389
and flrat retraced that asurvey.

Party No. 3 under H. M, Connor began at the recognized
northwest corner of the Wm. Eing Survey, Abst. 412, re-
traced the west and south lines of same and then those
surveys to the south of the Wm. King.

Preliminary traverses were run with all evidence of sur-
veys such a8 line, center line and witness trees tled
into these traverses as well as all evidence of occupancy
such as old hedge rowa, fences, blagzed timber llnes, cul-
tivated areas, ete. Each headright was first traversed
and then all record sub-divisions of seme. Horizontal
chaining was done throughout using hand levels and plumb
bobs and a balanced pull on the tepe es developed by
practice, and checked from time to time, with tape scales.
All angles were read three timau to determine thelir mean
and an azimuth closure of 10" per trensit point was re-
quired and met.

Upon completion of each preliminary traverse, or line,
the notes were platted and computed. In the event of
excessive error in closure the lines involved were re-
traced, usually by a different party, end the errors
corrrected.

Following the platting end preliminery computations the
controlling evidence was selected andi co~ordinated and
trial lines established for compariason with the original
field notesa of each affected survey and, i1f the compari-
gon was favorable the trial line was adopted and, working
from the preliminary travaraa pointa, i1t was monumented
upon the sround with 6" x 6" concrete monuments with a
copper aisk marking nail get in the top and stamped as
called for in the field notes. For the corners of the
headrizht surveys the usual method of marking was to use
the initlals of each survey affected. In most inatances
witness trees were marked and all original witness trees
tied in and recited in the fleld notes. Iron rods as
reference points were set on each line leading away from
the monument at the usual distance of 100 feet from the
corner except in fome instances where the topography made
it best to vary the dlstancs.
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Generally spankinf the history of the surveys retraced
for this project 1s the usual one for Esst Texas head-
right surveys of which most of the senior surveys were
made around 1838 to 1855 with a series of S. F. (screp)
surveys placed in around the years 1901 to-1910. This
area for the most part was, and 138, a timber area with
very little farmins. This fact caused the early des-
truction of many original witness trees and line treecs

end since the majority of the lands are not under lins
fences it wes hard to identify even specific lines of
oocupancy. For these reascne it was nearly always neces-
sary to consider several surveye at once rather than treat
them individually. Finding good evidence on the E, B.
Smith, the 0. C. Poums, Abst. 389, tho James Winton and
the Thomes Lee Surveys together with recognized and agreed
corners on several others, we used these surveys more or
less &g a basis for our constructiona. The result seemed
to fit the occupled and recognized corners as found to
have been established throughout the area by various sur-
veyors durlng the past thirty to forty years.

The area coversd by these retracement surveys approximates
26,961 acres contained in 63 headright surveys upon which
field notes and plats are being recorded. In addition to
these surveys we found 3 apparent wacencies® totaling
approximetely 108 acres, (1) the so-called "W.C. Bridzes
Pra-amgtinn Survey” of 43.97 acres shown on Index Map ae
Pi8=43"; (2) another tract of 18,36 acres acres lging
south of and adjacent to the "Bridgea" (shown as "IS-42A")
and, (3) a tract of 46.39 acres between the A, L, Dalby
and A, Montgomery Surveys on the west and the Joel Cherry
on the east (shown as ®1S-16B"),

"W.C, Bridges 'Pre-emption!'”
PL8-43" - 43,97 Acres

The so-called W. C. Bridges Pre-smption Survey seems to
be & case of where a man by the neme of W. C. Bridges
failed to carry out his intention of applying for the
land in question. A thorough search of both county and
General Land O0ffice records failed to reveal any applica=-
tion to acquire the land or any other evidence pertaining
to it in iteelf. However 1t 1s recognized by adjoinder
calls in each of the adjacent surveys thereby placing it
upon the ground in the position we find it to be.

In the original field notes for the Samuel Story Survey

a8 filed by Elam Riddle, Jenuary 9, 1858, we find the first
call to resd "Beginning at the scuthwest corner of a sur-
vey of 40 acres made for Williamson Bridjies on the H.R.

of G. W. Dunlap®

"Thence east 100 vrs. a stake in the south line of sd.
40 acre Survey ew--,%
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(These same calls enter into the 18.36 Acres Vacaney to to
be referred to later.)

In the field notes for the 3tephen 3tone Sumey as record-
ed in VPl. 1, Tege 101 of the Surveyors Records dated Jan-
uary 2, 1854, in the 6th call we find "Thence north 2160
vre, to & stake in the 5 B line of a 40 acre survey made

for Williamgon Bridges =~=-==",
"Theneé east 231 vrs. a stake the 3 E corner Bridges Survey-=-",

In a deseription of the J. W. Rogers Survey as recorded in
Vol. U, Tage 378 of the Deed Records of Norris County we
find a reference to another survey of 280 acres "wade for
Williamaon Bridges on the Head Right Certificate of G. V.
punlap". (This 15 now the Tiley George Survey) and again
in the 5th call "Thence west with Harrls (Now 3terhen 9tone)
N.B. 1line 780 varas to a stake, another corner of the Harris
Survey in the T, Bdry line of 50 acres survey made for
williamson Bridges =--==" , And, 6th, "Thence North with
Bridges line 156 varas to his N. ©T. cormer----=", And Tth,
"Thence West with Bridges North B, line =====,

In the Surveyors Notes Vol. 2, Fage 12, the fleld notes des=-
eribing the O, C. Touns 3urvey, Abast., 389 as surveyed June
4, 1907, we find the eall for the J. 7. Rogere southwest
corner &s well as the call "West 150 varag to 3., Stone'

N. 3F cormer'. Both fall to mention the "W. C. Bridges".
Tarole evidence for this omlission from an assistant of the
Jurveyor, Je Wo Touna, is to the effect that J. 7. Founs
stated he had been unable to find unﬁthing of record other
than the calls above listed for the "W. C. Bridges 40 acre
Survey", and that he, J. 7. Touns, considered it to be
vacant unsurveyed land at that time (1907). Our record
searching bears out this theory.

The land in queation is claimed by the A. L. MDalby "etate
without any record title nor do they own any land immediate-
ly adjacent to the land in question,

18.26 Acrde Vacancy
19 = 42 - A"

This apparent vacancy 1s closely affiliated with the "W. C.
Bridges" inaswuch as it is créated by the same adjoinder
notes as place the Bridges uron the ground, particularly
those of the 9terhen 3tone anl Jamuel 3tory Surveys togeth-
er with those for the James Tinton lying to the south.

In flam Riddle's original notes for the 3amuel Story Jurvey of
January 9, 1858, we find the beginning to be "at the SW corner

of a Survey of 40 acres made for Williamson Bridges on the HR

of G. W, NDunlap”",and "Thence east 100 varas a stake in the 9B
line of sd. 40 acre jurvey from which a Red Oak bears S.,60°W.8vrs,
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e White Oak S. 897 W, 11% wrs. both :): EB". No mention

18 made of the Stephen Stone Survey in either this call

or the following one "Thence south 585 varas a steke in
the N.B. line of a survey of 320 acres for J. T. Harris,
Assignee of James Winton, -=---". Then too the call from
this southesst corner of the Story reada: "Thence weat

668 vra. with said line (north line of Winton) to a cor-
nor of 8d. Harris Survey -=-", whereas the call for the
north line of the James Winton (J. T. Harris) dated June
3, 1854, as recorded in Vol. 1, Page 94, of the surveyor’s
Records of Morris County, reads: “Thence west at 173 varas
the S. B, G, of E, Bridges Pre~emption Survey (S. Story).
Thence along the S, L. L. of Bridges et 830 varas (in all)
Bridzes S. We Co in the E. B.L. of Hugh B. Lilleys”.
Reference is also made to the notes of the Stephen Stone
dated January 2, 1854 in which no mention 1s made of the
S. Story Survey.

In retracing these three surveys, viz; Semuel Story,
Stephen Stone and James Winton, the 18.36 acre vacancy
1s created upon the ground - especially by the fact that
we find the original White Oak witness tree stending as
called for together with the Red Osk stump for the Sem-
uel Story Survey northeast corner on the south llne of
the "W, C. Bridgea®. These trees are also called for
in a deed from W. T, Commor, Sr. to L. C. Luckell con-
veying 10 acres of land about 1808, the description of
which begins at the soutbwest cormer of "W. C. Bridges”
end runs"east 100 vrs.", the same as in the original
notea, This tract was actuslly surveyed and marked on
the ground as we found the old marked west line of same
with the southwest and northwest corners of seme as called.

In 1921 in the sult of W. T. Connor, Jr., et al to divide
the Eptate of W, T. Connor, Sr,, a commission was appointed
by the Court to resurvey all lands affected. Thia survey
was never recorded in the Surveyor's Records but is re-
flegted in the judgement deeds and the Ssmuel Story Sur-
vey is therein shown as including the 18.36 acres in ques-
tion. This was allocated to Lutie Turmer, sn helr of W. T.
Connor, and is now claimed by her son, Seymour Turner, her
puccessor in title. This gives Mr. Turner a clear prior
right clailm to this land but, although he has been informed
of the faets he 18 not disposed to take any steps to per-
feet his title,

46.59 Acre Vacancy
¥LS - 16 - B"

This apparent vacancy 1s bounded on the eecst by the west
1ine of the Joel Cherry Survey end on the west by the

east lines of the south portion of the A. L. Dalby Survey,
Abst. 350 and of the A, Hontgomery Survey.

The Dalby Survey was a Scrap File Survey made by J. W.
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Pouna, County Surveyor, first in 1907. These notes were
found to conflict with the W, C. Lilly Survey and arparenit-
ly were returned for correction as later the area was
ecovercd by two tracts in place of the one with the W. C.
1111y Survey dividing them into a north part and a south
part. These two A. L. Dalby Surveys were ratented Jan~
uary 8, 1909 as 2 tracts, the first tract being the one

in this conmection. It calls to begin at "The southwest
ecorner of & 37 acre survey mde for W. C. Lilly in J. .
watson's T, B. line a stake".

"Thence east 170 vrs. to Joel Cherry's northwest corner a
ptake ===="

“phence south with Cherry's W.B. 1line 1158 vrs. A. Vontgomery
N.E. cornor & T. O. bears N, 41° W, 9 vrs.."

"Thance wesy 450 vrs,. Wontgomery's N.W. cormer in Cyrus
Dobbs F, Be line a stake =--="

we found Touns lines for the Tatson, “he north part of the
A. L. Dalby, the J. Do Lill§ and the Dobbe without any
question a3 to identity. We find a marked line, withdut
corner witnesses standing, agreeing with his original 1907
field notes as to the offset distance of 180 vrs. between the
southwest corner of the J. D. Lilly and the Northwest cor-
‘ner of thé Joel Cherry, wich we belleve to be the line he
estaeblished as the west line of the Joel Cherry and the Fast
1ine of the A. L. Dalby. This is corroborated by the test~-
imony of Abe l'ontgomery, an old negro and the son of the
patentee of the A, lontgomery Survey. Just rrior to our
survey the reccgnized northeast corner of the i, Vontgo=
mery and the southeast corner of the A, L. Dalby Surveys
was known to exist upon the ground bt unfortunately 1

was destroyed by the construction of the "Rock Quarry Road" .
However, the negro Vontgome ry advised us of its arrroximate
location on the ground and we found his lccatlon as pointed
out to be in the marked line which we conelder as being
Touns work. Although thie line does not fit the occupsd
west 1line of the Joel Cherry we find it to agbee fairly well
with the ealle for the A. L. Dalby, so we belleve it to be
Touns interpretation of the weet line of the Cherry for
which he ealled in the Dalby notes., For these reasons we
peturned notee and plats (L9 = 16 - B) showing this doubtful
area as an alleged vacancy of 46.39 acres.

J. R, Dalby Survey, Abst. 89
"Lg - 22% 333,53 Acres

The J. R. Nalby Survey is one with & long history of doubt-
ful location and content., It 1s now owned and occupled by
thd A. L. Dalby Estate, direct helrs of the original J. B.
Dalby who first apriled for this land in 1851,
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Under date of February 6, 1851 A. F. Holcomb; Deputy
Surveyor, bowie District, returned a set of fleld notes
for 320 acres of land calling to begin at the northeast
cormer of the Leander Kidd and the southeast corner of
the J. Kolb Surveys, thence esast 1210 vrs., south 1493
vra, west 1210 vrs. to a point in the east line of the
Kidd Survey and thence north with the east line of the
Kidd 1493 vrs. to beglming.

The location of Leander Kidd Survey ls known and apparent-
ly is the same as then celled for. The J. Kolb does not
exlst as shown by Holcomb's notes and plat but was appar-
ently in the area now occupled by the J. M. Bohannon Sur-
vey. Locating the J. B. Dalby by the beginning call for
the L. EKidd Survey would place the Dalby in conflict with
the D. B. Sorrells Survey and approximately 1791 vrs.
north of where it is now occupled and claimed by the
Dalby Estate.

On the Land Office copy of the Holermb noves appear the
notation "Patented December 31, 1855, Martin". Also a
certificate reading: "This 16th March, 1855 this day
at 10 o'clock A.M. J. B. Dalby haa called on me to name
his refile which I have accordingly done.

M. I. Enight, D.S.B.D."

Also in the Lend Office file appears & set of "corrected
field notes of a survey of 320 acres of land made for
James B. Dalby", February 18, 1870 by F, Wilhite, Surveyor
in and for Titus County. These notea place the Dalby Sur-
vey where 1t is now occupied and claimed to be by the
Dalby heirs, that 1s, beginning at the southeast corner
of the L. Kidd Survey &nd lying to the essat of the L.
Skinner Survey. His plat on the notes shows 1t to be
bounded by the McCaln, the Story and the Winton Surveys.

Also appearing in the land Office files 1s an affidavit
dated May 8, 1871, by Sarah Dalby, widow of sald J. B.-
Dalby in which she states that her husband had secured
a patent to 320 ecres of land but it was not the same
land they hed settled upon and upon which she stlll
lived; that ths land so settled upon was that as des-
eribed in the Wilhite survey of February 18, 1870 as
above referred to; that she did not have the patent as
mentioned in her possession and she prayed for a new
patent to be issued on the Wilhite noteas. This affi-
davit was made before one J. F. Hinnant, Justice of the
Peace for Titus County, Precint No. 5.

On the back of the Whilhite field ncies eppear several
notes, one of which reads "The same quantity land under
settlers claim March 4, 1854 (and not as stated herein
January 22, 1845) ie located and ptd, to the same name
Jamea B. Dalby about 1400 varas north of this survey.

No evidence in office to show cause why said ptd. Ignuld

£¢1¢4¢2$k /e 70




uBn

be lifted. Explanation wanted befors platted on map.
April 18 / 70,
Thillepage™

Another note reads: "This survey will conflict with
Jes. Winton's ptd. B-49 Survey. This is to be correctsd
if the original field notes which are ptd. should get
rejected. March ¢ / 71,

Thillepage®

Although no correapondence appsars in the file evidently
inatrustions to correct the confliet above noted wers
issued es another set of "Corrected Fleld Notes of a Sur-
vey of 2604 acres of lgnd made for James B. Dalby ==="
appear in the file under date of October 12, 1871. These
notes are by "E. Riddle, Deputy Surveyor in end for Pitus
County", This set of notes, as do the ones by Whilhite,
begin at the northeast corner of the L. Skinner and south-
east of the L. Kidd and run east 1200 vrs. using same calls
for witneas trees at the corners as do the Wilhite notes.
However, in the next call "Thence south with Story's W.B.
line 930 vre. pess his southwest corner and the northwest
corner of & Survey for James Winton with Winton's W.B.

line in all 1225 vrs. Winton's L corner --=-"_, We find

the Wilhite notes to call for a distence of 1505 vrs, ==

a difference of 280 vrs. Both notes call to go to Winton's
"L" corner but in rumning west from same the Wilhite notes
fall to call to run with either the Winion or J. H. Skinner
north lines as do the later "corrected™ notes by E. Riddle.

On the Land 0ffice copy of these E, Riddle notes appeared
the notation "Patented te James A. Dalby, January 13 / '73,
A. Geluhour (?)%.

A werranty deed from en R. E. Dalby to A. L. Dalby recorded
in Vol. G., Page 339, Morris County Deed Records purports

o convey 3520 acres but recites the field notes by E, Riddle
(containing 260% scres) in 1ts description. The patent to
James A. Dalby does likewise, calls for 320 scres but uses
Riddles notes for 260% acres in its description.

The fileld notes of the J. H. Skinner Survey, Abst. 283, lying
to the aocuth of the Dalby Survey calls to adjoin the "Jas, A.
Dalby 2604 acre survey"”.

The original notes for both the Samuel Story and James Winton
Surveys refer to the ares now cleimed by the Dalby Survey as
the Hugh B. Lilly Survey. The Dalby heirs tell of an ar

ment between their grendfather, J. B. Dalby and H. B. Lilly
over the ownership of this land. This argument reputedly
reneh;di:ha point of gun play at which time Lilly dropped
his claim.

It seems that the patent mentioned in the affidavit by
s g Rt LR R R M R o
obiscn, Land asioner, sen 0 A. L. 4]
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recorded it in vol. 1, Page 457 of the Deed Records of
¥orris County, Texas. (This patent recites Holcomb's
1851 notes as its descrirtion.)

Apparently upon receipt of this old patent A. L. Dalby

had sonecne survey the land as claired by himr using the
distance calls contained within the patent but beginning
at the southeast ¢ rner of the L. ¥idd and not at the
northeast corner as called, We find an established south-
east corner with witness trees apparently marked about 25
years age. No record notea of such resurvey can be found,
In a resurvey of the James Winton Survey made for a divi-
sion of the eatate of W, T. Connor in 2521 for the guldance
of the commission appointed by the Court we find that the
surveyor, & kr, Black (deceased) from Camp County recog-
nized the Ddby southeast corner and changed the Winton
calls accordingly. This resurvey does not aprear in the
Surveyors Records but is only reflected in the "Decree of
Tartition" in the suit"w. T, Connor et al vs. O. 3. Connor
et al", filed November 21, 1921, Vol. 5, Fages 261 to 281 ,
inelusive, Deed Records of Vorris County. By this }aerui
the present owner, Title Latimer, was awarded 322 4/%
acres of land purporting to be all of the Jawes Winton
Survey. Since that transfer there seems to have been no
questions az to the conflict between the claims and
the original Winton Survey-- a conflict of 275 varas as
shown by the difference between 295 vrs., as called with
the east line of the "Lilly" in the origlnal Winton notes
and the S70 vrs., as called with the "Dalby" in the Decree
of Fartition notes., For many years the Dalby Eatate has
owned the J. H. Skinner Survey with which their claimed
position for the J. R. Dalby also conflicts so for that
reason no adverse claim entered from the Skinner Survey.

It view of the facts as above recited we decided it best
to "let sleeping dogs 1le" and likewise recognige the

Dalby clain and return herewith the “"Corrected Field Notes"
as shewn. Ve therefore recormend ihelr adoptlion.

(3. He Allen Survey, Abat. 396
"13 - 59" 413,99 Acres

The G. H. Allen Survey is another survey of doubtful lo-
cation end content. 1t first aprears in Vol, 2, Tage 6

of the Surveyor's Records of Forris County in field notes
by J. T. Pouns, County Surveyor under date of July 7 - 10,
1907, The caption of these notes readst "Field notes of
a surve 8 B He n virt

of his {IIIEWIE' aﬁ%gﬁiﬂ&tﬁﬂrﬂ—g:ﬂ* pggdlbng for g}.i.
sale of unsurveyed land”,
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On Page 28, Vol. 2 of the Surveyors Records of Morris
County under date of August 26, 19089, appsars snother
aet of fleld notes over the signature of W, S. Connor,
then County Surveyor of Morris County. The caption for
these notes ls similar to that of the Pouns notes and
also leaves the acreage blank.

The Pouns notsa of 1907 begin at Stephen Stonea southe
weat corner in the east line of the Bostick Survey,
Thence east, south, etec, ----, They are considerably
altered with calie struck out and others inserted and
interlined thereby meking them hard to interpret but
apparently they conflict with several surveys such as
the J. H. Johmaon, T. J. thmmlp Pefter Miller andp
especially the Suyles (or Napier s Pouns refers to 1t).
They will not ~lose as we interpret ¢.s notes.

The Connor nciées of 1909 begln at Thos. Lee's northwest
corneyr, thevce scuth, eest, ete. A comparison of the
calls in th2se notes with those of Pouns reveal such a
strikin:; s.meness exsept in the mixed-up portion where
Poune'aotes are lined out end interlined that the
writ»r 1s led to believe that Connor's work consisted
of .nly an office attempt to "straighten-out™ Pouns
»v.rik. The same confliects with the other BUrveys appear
i1 the Connor notea as they do in thossof Pouns.

Both surveyors were clearly attempting to cover all
vacant unsurveyed lands as bounded by the senior surveys
in this area.

The patent lasued May 2, 1916 and filed Ootober 8, 1919
in Vol. 2, Page 245 of the Deed Records of Morris County
calls for 563 acres of land and recites for description
the field notes by W. S, Connor of 1909.

In attempting to establish this survey by ita patent
calls we ran into conflicts upon the ground and since

the Allen primerily waes a Scrap File Survey we resorted
to the method of first eatablishing those senior surveys
bounding it and let it teke the residue. This was done
and as a result our survey of the Allen is very diffsrent
from those of both Pouns and Connor. We remove all con-
flicts and find only 413.99 acres of land whereas the
patent calls 563, a difference of approximately 139 acres
less land than called. Although the clfference in the
surveys ls consldereble as to locatlon, configuration
and acreage, it is our opinion that our findings are a
true representation of the G, H. Allen Survey and that
sald survey should be corrected in accordance with the
"Corrected Pleld Nctea™ as retuwrned herewith.
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In addition to the surveys herein discussed, attached
hereto 1s & detalled report covering the resurvey of
the tnsign B, 9mith Survey, Abstract 253, which 1s to
be considered as an additional part of this report.
The Smlth Survey appears in Vol. L. 3. No. 1, vhereas
the "46,39 Acres Vacancy", and the "JR" Dalby Survey
appear in Vol. L. S. B, the "W, C. B‘l"‘iﬂgﬁl“; the 18,36
Anresnjaeangr“ and the G. He Allen Survey appear in
Vol. L. 3. &4,

Ve have attempted to retrace all of the aurva;a upon
which we are returning "Corrected Field Notes® in an
impartial and equitable manner, with full consideration

being given to all evidence of the original aurvt{:rl
foot-steps and to each individual land owner's intepest

with prﬁjuﬁicn toward none,
%e therefore request your f¥ll consideration and adoption

of these resurveys.
!%éz/;lmp 7

Licensed State Eﬂhﬂ Surveyor
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ENSIGN B. SV'1TH SURVEY
ABSTRACT 253
IS - 1

4110.70 Aeres, Morris County
Texas

Tne Ensign B. Smith Survey was patented July 1, 1851, to one
John Spearman, Aseignee of Ensign B. Smith, on a "corrected"
survey made by Allen Urquhart, District Surveyor of Bowle

Land District dated June 12, 1839 and recorded in Vol. 1,

FYage 20 of the Surveyora Records of Morris County. These are
transcribed records and this may accourn’ for the cdd fraction-
al figures used in the area recited as being "Twenty-two

710, 800/9,000,000 Labors of land". Reducing this fraction

to decimals would equal 0.789777 of a labor which 1s 139.90
acres plus 3897.08 acree (22 labors) thus making the origilnal
total acreage to have been 4036,98 acres. Thls figure 1s
corroborated by the deed from Enslgn B. Smith to John Spearman
August 21, 1850, reciting "4000 acres more or lees" as re-~
corded in Vol."B", Page 183 of the "Transcribed" Deed Records
of lorris County. Our retracement, or "Corrected" survey
develope a total acreage of 4110.7T0 acres for the Ensign

B. Smith Survey. This agrees fairly well with the area of "4082"
acres as reclted in a deed from one R. 7. Dalby to T. B. Womack
menticned in the abstract but without reference as to date

or recording of same.

With the exception of a certain 102 acre tract out of the
Northeast rart of the Survey deeded to Livingston Zkilnner

in 1858, the Smith Survey remained more or less intact as

one tract of land until 1895 when W, B. "omack with J. B.
Henderson acting as agént, had J. 7. Founs, County Surveyor,
sub-divide the major portion of the survey into a system of
blocks, most of which were intended to contalin 100 acres each.
This sub-division plat and fleld notes were not filed for
record as such, but fortunately we found moat of Touns ori-
ginal notes, The work however, was reflected in thc deeds
recorded hy Henderson as he sold the tracts. After findling
the orlginal notes, 1t developed that in some several lnstances
the bearings to wltiness trees were erroneously reclted in the
deeds, but the occupled corners usually bore out the original
notes, and therefore we were able to identify and rproperly
locate the majority of them from original wltness trees stand-
ing. Inasmuch as practically all of the original 1839 survey
witnesses had been dest royed, we used the 1895 sub-divisions
as the best evidence of the correct location of the Survey
boundaries, and since this was alsc definitely substantlated

wariley. PSS

Py




by oeccupancy of many years standing, I feel that the location

as marked by us is a falr and equitable one.

Surveylng of the headright started in August, 1942, by a
party under Vaughn H. Fhillips as Chief of Tarty, with Ned
A. Ford as instrumentman. They began at the original south-
east corner of Block 4 on thé East line of the Survey. This
corner was marked by an old pine knot stake and the original
marked sweet gum witness tree standing. A preliminary line
was run South to the occupled Southeast corner of the Smith;
thence West along an 0ld4 marked and cccupied line to the
original Northwest corner of the 0. C. Touns Survey, an old
pine knot stake with original marked witness tree standing
on the Fast (or Northeast) bank of Cypress Creek. Returning
to the Southeast corner of Block 4 (the beginning point) a
line was run Nerth to a connection with the original sub-di-
vision Northeast corner of Block 2, also marked by an old
stake and original marked witness tree standing. On this
line a connecticn was wade to our Control Traverse "A" Line
for azimuth and grid contrel purposes.

Abandoning the east line of the Smith Survey for the time
belng, Thillipa returned again to the Southeast corner of

Hock 4, (the initial starting point) and began the retrace-
ment of the 1895 Sub-division block by block with a series

of closed traverses. - In this manner the remainder of the

East line and the greater part of the North line was develop-
ed by Fhillips as far Weat as the West line of Blocks 20,

21 and 22, During this time, ¥. H. Connor, with A. ¥, Holcomb
a8 Instrumentman, started running the Weat line of the Smith
Survey beginning at the original Northwest corner of Block

26 as marked by an old stake with original marked 18" Red

Oak witness tree standing. He first ran South following a
well and old marked line, finding the original Southwest
corner of Block 25 at Cypress Creek, crossing Cyrress the

old marked line swung to the Fast approximately 26 minutes
passing an old sub-division corner. This line was carried

to a point near the occupied Southwesat corner of the survey
and abandoned temporarlly. Connor returned to his starting .
point, the Northwest corner of Block 26, and ran North to inter-
sect with the North line as projected "est by Thillips. Hav-
ing made this connection, Connor then began another prelimin-
ary line at the original Northeast corner of the W. T. Fayne
Survey, sare belng an angle corner in the south line of the
Smith Survey and belng identified from an old pine knot stake
with orlglnal marked Tin Oak witness tree standing. From
thls point a line was mun West through the original Northwest
corner of the same 7. T. Tayne Survey to an intersection with
hils prellminary West line of the Smith. Returning to the
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Northeast corner of the . T. Fayne Survey Connor then ran
N. 60° 45' ®. along the Northweat 1line of the Ahira Butler
Survey and formed the original marked FTin Oak witneas tree
standing on the 3outhwest bank of Cyprress Creek for the North
corner of sald Butler Survey and an inner patent corner of
the Smlth Survey. At this point Conner connected with a
meander line of Cypreas Creek ran by fhillips from the O. C.
Pouns Northwest corner to the Gouth Southwest corner of Block
15 of the Smith sub-divislon. Again returning to the North-
east corner of the 7, T. Fayne Survey, Connor ran a line
Eaat across the Butler Survey, crossed Cyrress Creel, made
& passing connection to the Northwest corner of the 0. C.
Pouns SJurvey, and continued on across the Founs and the
Clalborne Ferguson Survey to intersectlon with a South
projection of the Tast line of the Swith. Thise line was
run for the purpose of trying to locate evidence of the South
line of the S9mith as first run prier to Urquhart's "corrected"
survey of 1839. lNo evidence was found.

Uponi the evidence found by these prel!winary lines the bound-
aries of the Smlth Survey were develcpsd and monumented as
reflected by the fleld notes and plats sub-mitted herewlth
and of which a few features are directed to your attention
for comparison with the patent notea.

Qur calls run clockwlse whereas the original run counterclock-
wise around the survey, thus necessitating more explanation.

The patent begins at the Scutheast corner of the survey called
to be "at a stake 1220 varas Tast from the Northeast bank of .
Cypress Creek”. We make our Joutheast corner &t & point

N. 89% 24' ©, 1241.8 vra. as compared to the call of 1220
vras., an excess of 21.8 vrs. :

The patent calls the East line to run North 4700 vrs where-

as we find it to be N. 0° 47' 28" Ww. 4798.57 vrs., an excess 3
of 98.57 vra. On this line the patent calls to cross "Holly" 4
Creek (now known as Barnes Creek) at 3000 vrs. whereas we 3
cross it at 3110 vrs., a difference of 110 vrs, excessive

distance from the Southeast corner, but only 11 vres. less than

cell from the Northeast corner of the Smith.

The call for the North line 18 Teat 4700 vrs. whereas we make
it S. 89° 537 52" W, 4784,16 vra., an excees of 84,16 vrs.

On thls line the patent calls to cross "Bruton's" (now known
as Elliscn) Creek at 900 vra. from the Northeast corner of
the aurvey, and we crossed the old channel at 905 vrs., a
differnece of only 5 vrs, The old channel had to be damned
and a levee bullt with the new cut channel being at 966 vrs.
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The Urquhart notes (patent) call to cross Cypress Creek on the
West line at 3090 varas from the Northwest corner of the
Survey whereas we cross it at 3206 vra. and we make the total
West line to be 48%4.78 vrs., whereaa the call is for 4700
vrs., thus we have an excess of 194,78 vra. This is reflect-
ed in the development of the South line as tc be noted later.

From the Southwest corner of the Smith Survey to the corner
on the "West line of A. Butler Survey" the original call is
"East 1900 vrs." whereas we find it to be "N. 89° 49' 20" E,
2480,86 vrs.", an excess of 580.86 vrs., which 1s by far the
greatest discrepancy developed. However this is as marked
by adjacent surveys and also as fenced and occupied for many
years with no known disputes arising from such locatlon.

Urquhart (1839) calls "North 60 degrees East with saild Butler's
line 960 vrs." whereas we find this to be N. 60° 45' 58" E,
956.99 vra., a very close comparative figure.

Another peint of considerable difference 1s the line along
the creek. Urquhart calls: "and down sald Cypress with 1its
meanders 3. 57 1/3° E. 890 vrs. to a stake whence the origl-
nal S. B. line of sald Swmith Survey crosses sald Cypress" --,
Gur airline ccnnection from the A. Butler original corner to
the 0. C. Touns original Northwest corner is 3. 37° 19' 34" E.
481.72 vre. while the meander courses total only 713.19 vra.
thus developing another difference to be noted. Ly theory
of this difference ls based on Urquharts statement referring
to the "original S. B. line of said 3mith". His survey was
a retracement survey for the purpcse of eliminating a con-
fliet between the Smith Survey and the A. Butler Survey and,
since hia other three sildes agree with the original fleld
notes, it 1ls probable he ran only that part along the Butler
line and erroneously calculated both the "East 1900 vra. to

. Butler West line" and the creek call of "3, 57 1/3° E. 890
vra." However the est portion of the South line of the
Smith aa we found it will fall approximately 103.8 vrs. South
of the Northwest cormer of the Founs Survey, thus coming near-
er to his creek cgll. Both the 0. C. Pouns and the C. Ferguson
Surveys are many years Junior to the Smith, and 1t is probable
that they may mave been placed on the ground 1n conflict with
the Smith, thus explaining the offset in the south line. How-
ever thls would add to the discrepancy in the call to cross

"Holly Creek" on the East line.

After taking all evidence into full consideration and re-
cognizling occupancy throughout, it 1s my bellef that the

coreniles) /695




